
 
 

 
 
Committee: 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

WEDNESDAY, 4 JANUARY 2017 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
3. Request to Call-in Cabinet Decision -  Heysham Gateway - Cabinet Minute 38 

(Pages 1 - 22) 
 
 The Cabinet decision on the Heysham Gateway (Minute 38) taken by Cabinet on 6th 

December 2016 has been requested to be called in by Councillors Caroline Jackson and 
Phillippa Williamson (Overview and Scrutiny Members) and by Councillors Dave Brookes, 
Roger Mace and Tim Hamilton-Cox.   
 
 This request was subsequently agreed by the Chief Executive. The decision has been 
called-in in accordance with Part 4 Section 5, Paragraph 16 of the Council’s Constitution.   
 
Councillor Janice Hanson (Cabinet Member with responsibility for Economic Regeneration 
and Planning) and Councillor James Leyshon (Cabinet Member with responsibility for 
Property), have been invited to attend to outline the basis on which the decision was 
made.   
  
 
 

Councillors are reminded that as Members of overview and scrutiny they 
may not be subjected to the Party Whip, which is prohibited under the 

Lancaster City Council Constitution. 



 

 
Included in the agenda:   
 

 Call-in Procedure  
 

 Cabinet minute extract 
 

 Call-in Notice 
 

 Report to Cabinet and Appendix  
 
 

  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors June Ashworth (Chairman), Caroline Jackson (Vice-Chairman), Alan Biddulph, 

Tracy Brown, Brett Cooper, Rob Devey, Roger Mace, David Whitaker and 
Phillippa Williamson 
 

 
(ii) Substitute Membership 

 
 Councillors Lucy Atkinson, Nigel Goodrich, Janet Hall, Geoff Knight, Abi Mills  and 

Nicholas Wilkinson  
 

 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Jenny Kay, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582065 or email 

jkay@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Democratic Support, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk.   
 

SUSAN PARSONAGE, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Wednesday, 21st December 2016.   

 

mailto:democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk


EXTRACT FROM THE CONSTITUTION 
 

Part 4 – Rules of Procedure, 
Section 5 – Overview and Scrutiny Procedure rules, 
Sub-section 16 – Call-in Procedure. 
 

 
 
 
Call-in Procedure 
 
In considering a Call-in decision the following procedure will be followed: 
 

 The Councillors who have made the Call-in request (who shall be seated 
together) will outline the reasons for the Call-in; 

 

 The relevant decision-maker(s), with support from the appropriate officer(s) (who 
shall be seated together), will outline the reasons for their decision and the issues 
that they took into account;  

 

 Councillors who are signatories to the Call-in request will have the opportunity to 
question the decision-maker; 

 

 Other Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will have the opportunity 
to question the decision-maker; 

 

 At the discretion of the Chairman, other Members present may have the 
opportunity to question the decision-maker; 

 

 Before forming a decision, the Chairman may decide to adjourn the meeting in 
order to allow the Call-in signatories to reflect on the evidence received and to 
consider any recommendations they wish the Committee to consider. 

 

 The meeting then moves to forming a decision in accordance with the Council 
Procedure Rules. 

 

 



38 HEYSHAM GATEWAY  
 
 (Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Hanson and Leytham) 

 
Cabinet received a joint report from the Chief Officers (Regeneration) and (Resources) to enable 
consideration and agreement of an overall strategy for the development of Heysham Gateway to 
guide future decisions affecting council assets in the area. 
 
The options, options analysis, including risk assessment and officer preferred option, were set out in 
the report as follows: 

 

Heysham Gateway Development Principles 

 Option A1:  
Do not agree 
development principles 
for the area and deal 
with enquiries on a 
reactive basis  

Option A2:  
Agree principles for 
Heysham Gateway (as set 
out in section 3.6 of the 
report) as the main guide 
for future Council decisions 
affecting the area (planning 
policy, site development, 
marketing and funding bids 
etc) 

Option A3:  
Develop an alternative set 
of principles for Heysham 
Gateway 

 

Advantages 
Provides maximum 
flexibility and allows for 
the widest possible 
range of potential end 
uses. 

Provides certainty and 
guidance for planning, 
development, land disposal 
and infrastructure decisions. 
Provides opportunity to co-
ordinate development with 
environmental 
improvements. 
Provides vehicle for 
bringing on board partners 
and stakeholders to jointly 
promote regeneration of 
Heysham Gateway. 
   

Could widen the range of 
uses deemed appropriate 
for the site and provide 
more flexibility in terms of 
utilising assets. 

Disadvanta
ges 

Does not provide 
guidance or certainty 
for potential developers 
and the local 
community.  
No real basis for 
determining 
development proposals 
/ land disposals. 
Makes marketing the 
area and attracting 
investment and/or grant 
funding more difficult. 
Difficult to co-ordinate 
investment in 
infrastructure. 

Would limit the type of uses 
deemed appropriate for the 
area and potentially miss 
out on investment. 
Restricts options for land 
disposals. 
 

Would require more time 
and could delay planning 
and land decisions.  
Would create period of 
uncertainty.  
Difficult to market area 
without clear agreed 
principles. 



Risks 
Increase possibility of 
proposals for 
inappropriate uses.  
Would prejudice 
opportunity to promote 
a comprehensive 
redevelopment of the 
area including 
environmental 
improvements.  

May not be possible to get 
all parties to agree 
principles. Decisions could 
be delayed and 
opportunities lost if this is 
not secured quickly. 
May restrict options for land 
disposals with associated 
risks in achieving best 
consideration. 

Risks losing momentum 
and potentially urgent 
enquiries / offers. 
Could also restrict options 
for land disposals with 
associated risks in 
achieving best 
consideration. 

 

Use of Council assets at the Heysham Gateway 

 Option B1:  
Do nothing 
further – 
continue to hold 
land for the 
time being 

Option B2:  
Dispose of land 
drawing on principles 
at section 4.11 of the 
report, using the 
preliminary ground 
and ecology survey 
work to assess value. 

Option B3: 
Look to develop 
necessary 
infrastructure and 
undertake 
development on a 
design and build basis 
subject to securing 
pre-let / sales 

Option B4: 
Look to develop 
necessary 
infrastructure and 
develop units on a 
speculative basis   

Advant
ages 

Retains the site 
in Council 
ownership – 
could be some 
other (currently 
unforeseeable) 
use found at a 
later date.   

Brings an 
underutilised asset 
back into use 
 
Delivers a capital 
receipt with knock on 
savings for revenue 
budget 
 
Regeneration and job 
creation / retention  
 
De-risking contributes 
to obtaining best 
consideration 
 
A long lease would 
retain some limited 
control over the site. 

Aims to bring an 
underutilised asset 
back into use 
Should deliver capital 
receipt / revenue 
savings. 
 
Regeneration and job 
creation / retention. 
 
Retains a high level of 
control over the 
design of  the 
development 

Aims to bring an 
underutilised asset 
back into use 
Should deliver 
capital receipts / 
revenue savings.   
 
Regeneration and 
job creation / 
retention. 
 
Retains a high level 
of control over the 
design of  the 
development 

Disadv
antage
s 

Retains the 
ongoing 
management 
costs of this 
currently 
underutilised 
asset. 
 
Would miss the 
opportunity to 
deliver a timely 
capital receipt 
with knock on 
savings for 
revenue budget 

Loss of full control 
over site. 
 

Higher level of initial 
investment required – 
may prevent other 
investment priorities. 
 
Requires further 
appraisal and would 
take much longer to 
implement. 
 
Very uncertain 
financial outcome. 

Much higher level of 
initial investment 
required – may 
prevent other 
investment 
opportunities. 
 
Requirements further 
appraisal and would 
take much longer to 
implement. 
 
Very uncertain 
financial outcome. 



Risks 
Could be seen 
a missed 
opportunity by 
not taking 
advantage of 
the publicity 
and increased 
demand 
created by the 
completion of 
the M6 link 
road. 

Risk in finding the 
balance between the 
levels of up-front 
investment in de-
risking (survey work) 
required to obtain best 
consideration for a 
particular plot. 
 
In the future 
potentially there could 
potentially be greater 
opportunity for the 
land – missed 
opportunity. 

Potentially less 
attractive to those 
who would wish to 
develop the site 
themselves. 
 
Higher financial risk 
exposure – though 
potentially lost 
opportunity to reap 
greater financial 
benefits. 
 
Harder to deliver – 
skills and capacity 
risk. 

Potentially less 
attractive to those 
who would wish to 
develop the site 
themselves 
 
Lack of demand for 
the units provided – 
with resulting in 
much higher 
financial risk 
exposure. 
 
Harder to deliver – 
skills and capacity 
risk. 

 

With regards to the development principles for Heysham Gateway the Officer preferred option is to 
approve Option A2 i.e. to agree development principles for Heysham Gateway as the main guide for 
future Council decisions affecting the area, as this presents an informed and clear way forward, 
drawing on the views of other key stakeholders.  If approved, Cabinet is requested to authorise 
Officers to incorporate the agreed principles into a joint marketing prospectus for Heysham Gateway 
and to work with the other main stakeholders in promoting the area for high quality sustainable 
regeneration. 

 

With regards to the use of council assets the Officer preferred option is to approve Option B2, i.e. to 
dispose of land in line with the principles at section 4.11 of the report, using the preliminary ground 
and ecology survey work to assess value.  If approved, Cabinet is requested to recognise that land 
is surplus to its own operational requirements.  In terms of the other options, it is considered that 
there is little point in simply holding on to the land (option B1).  In terms of Options B3 and B4, as 
referred to in paragraph 4.9 of the report, these options are not considered to be worth the risk, and 
this has already been accepted in principle by the County Council. 

 

Officers consider their preferred options would provide a clear guide for future strategic development 
of the Heysham Gateway site, achieving financial benefits from disposal through long leasehold but 
still retaining some limited control over its current landholdings. 

 
Councillor Hanson proposed, seconded by Councillor Leyshon:- 
 
“That the recommendations, as set out in the report, be approved.” 
 
Councillors then voted:- 
 
Resolved unanimously: 

(1) That the development principles for Heysham Gateway (in line with Option A2 and as set 
out in paragraph 3.6 of the report) be approved as the main guide for future Council 
decisions affecting the area. 

(2) That Officers be authorised to incorporate the agreed principles into a joint marketing 
prospectus for Heysham Gateway and to work with the other main stakeholders in promoting 
the area for high quality sustainable regeneration. 

(3) That approval be given to dispose of City Council land at Heysham Gateway (in line with 



option B2 and the principles at section 4.11 of the report) using the preliminary ground and 
ecology survey work to assess value and in support of this: 

a. the City Council land shown edged in red on the plan attached to the report (Appendix A) 
be declared surplus to requirements; 

b. Cabinet authorises Officers to negotiate with interested parties and report back to Cabinet 
with the results of the negotiations on any parcel of relevant land owned by the City 
Council to obtain final approval for any disposal. 

 
Officers responsible for effecting the decision: 
 
Chief Officer (Resources) 
Chief Officer (Regeneration & Planning) 
 
Reasons for making the decision: 
 
Sustainable Economic Growth is one of the Council’s four priorities and Heysham Gateway is 
identified as a Regeneration Priority in the Core Strategy and emerging Local Plan.  The development 
principles agreed will provide the basis for actions in the immediate future by the Council, its partners 
and other stakeholders seeking to capitalise in a sustainable way on the opportunities presented by 
the opening of the Bay Gateway.  Beyond these and building on the effects of inward investments 
both on development sites, and within the Port itself, work will continue on formulating an ambitious 
and high profile vision for Heysham Gateway over the next decade.   

 



 

REQUEST FOR CALL-IN 
 
This form is to be used when calling in a decision taken by the Cabinet, an Individual 
Member of the Cabinet or a committee of the Cabinet, or a key decision made by an officer 
with delegated authority from the Cabinet, or under joint arrangements. The full procedure is 
set out in paragraph 16, Part 4, Section 5 of the Constitution and page 7 of the Handbook.   

ITEM TO BE CALLED IN: Heysham Gateway 
 

DATE DECISION TAKEN: 6 Dec 2016 
 
DECISION TAKEN BY: 

 
 

Tick 

Cabinet √ 

Individual Member of Cabinet (please state)  
Councillor 

 

Committee of Cabinet (please state)  
 

 

Key Decision by Officer with delegated authority (please state) 
 

 

Joint Arrangements (please state) 
 

 

REASONS FOR CALL-IN: 
(please indicate your reasons below) 

 
 

Tick 

(a) Proportionality (i.e. the decision is not proportionate to the desired outcome).    

(b) Lack of, or insufficient consultation and the taking of professional advice from 
Officers.  

√ 

(c) Lack of, or insufficient respect for human rights.    

(d) Lack of openness.   √ 

(e) The aims and desired outcomes of the decision are not clearly expressed.    

(f) Insufficient information about the options that were considered or the reasons 
for arriving at the decision.   

√ 

(g) Other (please give your reason(s) in full below).   √ 



 

REASONS AND (IF APPROPRIATE) PROPOSED ALTERNATIVE COURSE OF ACTION: 
WE WISH TO CALL IN THE DECISION OF CABINET MADE 6/12/16 REGARDING 

THE OVERALL STRATEGY GUIDING ”FUTURE DECISIONS AFFECTING COUNCIL 

ASSETS IN THE AREA”. WE CONSIDER THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN 

THE REPORT AND IN THE CABINET PROCEEDINGS GIVES INSUFFICIENT 

INFORMATION REGARDING THE PROPOSAL AND INSUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO 

MAKE THE DECISION THAT THE STRATEGY QUOTED BELOW:  
“EACH PLOT WOULD BE SOLD ON A LONG LEASEHOLD BASIS … 
IS THE BEST OVERALL FINANCIAL OPTION FOR THE COUNCIL.  
SECTION 2 ARTICLE 7 STATES THE CABINET WILL  …”SECURE A CONTINUOUS 

REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF SERVICES AND 

DEMONSTRATE THAT THE COUNCIL IS DELIVERING THOSE SERVICES IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE PRINCIPLES OF BEST VALUE AND COMMUNITY 

PLANNING, “               
PART 5 SECTION 1 FINANCIAL REGULATIONS STATES “ALL ELECTED MEMBERS 

AND OFFICERS HAVE A GENERAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR TAKING REASONABLE 

ACTION TO PROVIDE FOR THE SECURITY OF THE ASSETS AND ANY OTHER 

RESOURCES UNDER THEIR CONTROL AND FOR ENSURING THE USE OF THESE 

RESOURCES …PROVIDES VALUE FOR MONEY”. 
 
PROPOSED ALTERNATIVE: 
THAT CABINET RECONSIDER THE DECISION TO USE ONLY ONE STRATEGY TO 

DISPOSE OF THE PLOTS OF LAND OWNED BY THE CITY COUNCIL IN THE 

HEYSHAM GATEWAY AREA AND REQUIRE OFFICERS TO CONSIDER OTHER 

METHODS OF DISPOSAL AS THEY SEEK TO SATISFY THE NEED TO PROVIDE BEST 

VALUE AND VALUE FOR MONEY. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIGNED: Members of Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Cllr Caroline Jackson Cllr Philippa Williamson 

Three Further Councillors 

Cllr Tim Hamilton Cox Cllr Dave Brookes Cllr 
Roger 
Mace  

(Note: A valid request for call in must be signed by a total of 5 Members of the Council, 
including 2 or more Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, and all 5 Councillors 
must not be from the same political group.) 



 
DATE: 16.12.16 

This request for call in must be submitted to the Chief Executive (by 
post, fax or e-mail) within 5 working days of the date of publication of 

the decision. 
 



 
 

CABINET  

 
 

Heysham Gateway 
6th December 2016 

 
Joint Report of Chief Officers (Regeneration) and 

(Resources) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To consider and agree an overall strategy for the development of Heysham Gateway to 
guide future decisions affecting council assets in the area. 
 

Key Decision X Non-Key Decision  Referral from Cabinet 
Member 

 

Date of notice of forthcoming 
key decision 

7th November 2016. 

This report is public  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR JANICE HANSON AND COUNCILLOR 
JAMES LEYSHON 

(1) That Cabinet agrees the development principles for Heysham Gateway 
(in line with Option A2 and as set out in paragraph 3.6) as the main 
guide for future Council decisions affecting the area. 

(2) That Officers be authorised to incorporate the agreed principles into a 
joint marketing prospectus for Heysham Gateway and to work with the 
other main stakeholders in promoting the area for high quality 
sustainable regeneration. 

(3) That Cabinet agrees to dispose of its land at Heysham Gateway (in line 
with option B2 and the principles at section 4.11) using the preliminary 
ground and ecology survey work to assess value and in support of 
this: 

a. the City Council land shown edged in red on the plan attached 
(Appendix A) be declared surplus to requirements; 

b. Cabinet authorises Officers to negotiate with interested parties and 
report back to Cabinet with the results of the negotiations on any 
parcel of relevant land owned by the City Council to obtain final 
approval for any disposal. 

 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The land around south Heysham and Middleton village is one of the district’s 
key regeneration priority areas. Known as “Heysham Gateway” it contains 



large areas of vacant land (much of which is owned by either the City or 
County Council) which is suitable for redevelopment to capitalise on demand 
generated by the recent completion of the Bay Gateway.  (See Appendix A). 

1.2 Heysham Gateway contains infrastructure of national importance, namely the 
Port of Heysham and the two Nuclear Power Stations together with extensive 
energy installations. It also suffers from the physical after effects of large 
scale industrial processes that came to an end in the 1980s. Paradoxically, it 
also contains important wildlife habitats and provides many recreational 
opportunities for local residents. 

1.3 A short history of the area is set out in Appendix B. This covers the period 
from the final closure of the large scale petrochemical and chemical industries 
that previously dominated the area in the 1980s and previous initiatives to 
improve the area such as Middleton Wood through to the present day with the 
opening of the Bay Gateway. 

1.4 Given the importance of the area, and the challenges faced in realising its 
potential, agreeing clear principles for the future of Heysham Gateway and a 
strategic, comprehensive approach to its regeneration is absolutely critical. 
This is required to inform a range of decisions including planning, marketing / 
promotion and utilising land assets. 

1.5 For the last five years or so, a great deal of work has taken place to gain a 
better understanding of the area. This has included site investigations, 
gauging levels of demand, qualifying infrastructure requirements and 
determining the best mix of uses in terms of physical regeneration and job 
creation. As part of this process, the Lancaster Regeneration Property 
Partnership has worked with the two councils and local stakeholders to obtain 
up-to-date market information and has undertaken extensive survey work to 
better understand possible constraints to development. This has enabled a 
vision for the area to be developed and tested in the light of known market 
and viability information. 

1.6 At the same time, work has continued on the planning framework for 
Heysham Gateway. This will feed into the new Local Plan. 

1.7 This report covers two main areas. Firstly, agreeing the overall principles for 
considering the development of Heysham Gateway and secondly, considering 
how best to utilise the council’s assets in the area. 

 

2.0 Policy Background 

2.1 The strategic importance of Heysham Gateway was established in the Core 
Strategy (2008) which identified it as a “Regeneration Priority Area”. This 
designation sought to upgrade the area whilst capitalising on its potential in 
the energy, environmental technology and port related sectors. 

2.2 The Core Strategy is in the process of being updated and replaced by the 
new Local Plan. The consultation draft (which will be reported to full Council 
on 14th December) will take forward, update and develop the strategic 
approach to Heysham Gateway. It will contain a new vision for the area and 
provide more detailed policies on key sites / issues such as the Port and the 
Nuclear Power Stations. The Local Plan will, in turn, be supported by a 
detailed planning brief for the area.  For information, the Planning Policies 
Map as at October 2012 is attached at Appendix C. 

2.3 Running in tandem with the Local Plan process, the council is also preparing 
a Sustainable Economic Vision and Strategy to provide clarity on local 
priorities and a supporting Investment Framework focused on delivery. A draft 
report was discussed at the November meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee which (amongst other things) confirmed Port Related Logistics 



and the Energy and Environmental uses as key sectors of the local economy. 

2.4 The same Overview and Scrutiny Committee also considered a report on 
Heysham Gateway and had the benefit of useful contributions from 
representatives of the private sector, Lancashire County Council and local 
councillors. The Committee resolved that the following priorities be put 
forward to Cabinet for consideration: 

 Provision of HGV parking 

 Opportunity to restructure White Lund Industrial Estate 

 Provision of employment opportunities 

 Consideration of leasing versus selling Council owned land within the 
Heysham Gateway 

 Provision of warehousing 

 Provision of affordable housing 

 The Heysham Gateway be marketed in collaboration with other land 
owners to provide a joined up comprehensive approach  

 

2.5 Cabinet itself has recently been briefed informally on Heysham Gateway and 
had the benefit of a site visit in September.  The Chief Officer (Regeneration 
and Planning) has also met with Peel Ports to discuss their medium and long 
term plans for the Port of Heysham and to ensure that the views of other 
stakeholders align properly with what the Port sees as its future growth 
potential. 

 

3.0 Heysham Gateway Development Principles 

3.1 With the above in mind, it is now the right time to consider how best to realise 
the potential of Heysham Gateway and to agree aspirational but realistic 
development principles for the area. 

3.2 From discussions that have taken place over recent months, there is a 
consensus that in economic growth terms, priority should be given to 
employment development that is locally generated and creates jobs in areas 
such as manufacturing, power generation, research and development. That 
said, there is a realisation that the Port of Heysham is an asset of national 
importance. Therefore, development that supports its operation and growth 
also needs to be accommodated even if the direct jobs created by storage, 
servicing or logistical uses might be relatively low. 

3.3 Furthermore, there is a recognition that renewable energy schemes may well 
prove to be a valuable income stream in the medium to longer term and the 
area could facilitate further schemes in due course. 

3.4 At the same time, the opportunity exists to radically improve the local 
environment to benefit local residents and the ecological importance of the 
area. Addressing existing problems, principally local access, land drainage 
and remaining land contamination must be included in future plans for the 
area. 

3.5 Finally, to fully realise this ambition, everyone with an interest in the area 
needs to be brought on-board and buy into the development principles. 
Investment decisions need to be co-ordinated to maximise their impact as 
should promotion and marketing activities. 

3.6 With this in mind, the following development principles are proposed aimed at 
transforming Heysham Gateway into a high quality sustainable employment 
area which can fully realise the Port of Heysham’s role as one of the UK’s 
main ports for trade with the Irish Republic, Northern Ireland and the Isle of 



Man and capitalise on other key growth sectors. 

Heysham Gateway will: 

a. Provide a range of sites to meet the needs of key growth sectors 
with priority given to job creation, energy generation, environmental 
technology and port related uses; 

b. To support this growth, development land will be made available, 
existing areas improved, infrastructure deficiencies addressed and a 
co-ordinated approach to development adopted; 

c. Undergo a radical transformation by removing dereliction and 
contamination and improving the local environment. 

 

3.7 Delivering Heysham Gateway will require pro-active action from all the main 
stakeholders in the area. The remainder of this report focuses on the city 
council’s contribution to this process. 

 

4.0 Use of Council Assets 

4.1 During the last few years, through the Lancashire Regeneration Property 
Partnership (LRPP) both the City Council and Lancashire County Council 
have been exploring the development and disposal options for their joint 
landholdings off Imperial Road in Middleton, a key site within Heysham 
Gateway.  

4.2 The overall site includes both City and County land totalling approximately 
31.9 hectares (78.7 acres), of which 18.5 hectares (47.5 acres) is under the 
ownership of the City Council. A plan of the site identifying the ownership of 
both authorities is included at Appendix A. Most of the site is identified for 
employment development in the emerging Local Plan. 

4.3 The LRPP engaged the services of CBRE to undertake a marketing exercise 
and provide valuation and planning support in evaluating the development 
options for the overall site. The site does suffer from a number of constraints 
as a result of its historic uses and the nature of the surrounding land. This has 
generated a degree of uncertainty and risk surrounding the abnormal 
infrastructure and remediation costs associated with developing the land. 
Efforts have been made to mitigate this risk and provide more certainty to 
potential developers through analysing existing information and the 
commissioning of various surveys to improve understanding of the site. These 
include: 

 Ground conditions desktop study 

 Extended habitat ecological survey 

 Arboriculture constraints report 

 Utilities search 

 Transport scoping document 

    

4.4 CBRE have been actively marketing the site since February 2014 and this, 
plus some localised soft market testing, has uncovered strong interest from 
the light industrial, waste to energy and roadside retail sectors in particular. 
The site’s detachment from residential dwellings and its proximity to existing 
waste and electricity generation infrastructure, including grid access, makes it 
ideal for energy from waste facilities, which are often contentious in planning 
terms when residential areas are close-by. 

4.5 Interest has also been received from several locally based companies wishing 
to relocate to the area to consolidate and expand their businesses. One of 
these refers to an urgent need to relocate and is therefore seeking an early 



decision on their enquiry. 

4.6 In response to this interest, the LRPP submitted a Stage 1 report in June 
2016 recommending that both councils work together to deliver a co-
ordinated business park as potentially the first phase in regeneration of the 
wider industrial stock and council owned landholdings in the area (see 
background document).  

4.7 The LRPP Stage 1 report arrived at the following four options: 

 OPTION 1: Do nothing and sell now. 

 OPTION 2: Promote the site for light industrial, energy regeneration 
and roadside retail uses, de-risk the development process by 
undertaking preliminary ground and ecology survey work and sell plots 
on long leasehold or freehold basis. 

 OPTION 3: Promote the site for light industrial use, develop necessary 
infrastructure and undertake development on a design and build basis 
subject to securing pre-let / sales. 

 OPTION 4: Promote the site for light industrial use, develop necessary 
infrastructure and develop units on a speculative basis.   

 

4.8 The Stage 1 Report identified further de-risking work and surveys to those 
already undertaken. However, this additional work is now judged to be 
unnecessary because based on current expressions of interest, each end 
user would require a different remediation solution and this would need to be 
reflected in the ultimate land values agreed for each plot. Furthermore, the 
survey findings already undertaken are clear in stating that there is no risk to 
health.  In short therefore, there is no business case for taking a standard, 
whole-site approach to further remediation survey requirements. 

4.9 With this in mind, the LRPP, supported by CBRE, consider that based on the 
current indications of remediation cost and the nature of the expressions of 
interest received to date, both the City and County Councils will be able to 
achieve a satisfactory market return through a modified Option 2 (to reflect 
the changes in survey requirements outlined above) thus mitigating their 
exposure to cost and risk.  This recommendation has already been approved 
in principle by the LRPP Strategic Partnering Board on behalf of the County 
Council. 

4.10 Given the current level of demand, the potential urgency surrounding one of 
the expressions of interest in particular and the importance of bringing this 
land forward in economic growth / regeneration terms, it is now necessary to 
determine the way forward. 

4.11 Under any disposal plan, the basic principles behind the disposal of land 
owned by the City Council and forming part of the Heysham Gateway would 
be as follows: 

 All offers would be assessed in terms of best consideration and their 
synergy with any adopted development principles for Heysham 
Gateway (as currently proposed in section 3.6).  

 Each plot would be sold on a long leasehold basis to allow both local 
authorities to retain some control over development of the site. 

 An agreed (negotiated) fee of 5% of the sale price to cover the 
marketing and de-risking of the site would be payable to the LRPP on 
completion of each sale. 

 Once heads of terms, site boundaries and other pertinent details for 
the proposed sale of each site were firmed up and provisionally 
agreed, Officers would return to Cabinet to obtain final approval for the 
disposal of each individual parcel of land. 



 

5.0 Details of Consultation  

5.1 Consultation has taken place with Lancashire County Council and the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the parties directly involved in these 
proposals. Ward Councillors have been advised of the proposals and any 
comments will be fed into the Cabinet meeting. 

 

6.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 

6.1  Heysham Gateway Development Principles 

 Option A1:  
Do not agree 
development 
principles for the 
area and deal with 
enquiries on a 
reactive basis  

Option A2:  
Agree principles for 
Heysham Gateway (as 
set out in section 3.6) 
as the main guide for 
future Council decisions 
affecting the area 
(planning policy, site 
development, 
marketing and funding 
bids etc) 

Option A3:  
Develop an alternative 
set of principles for 
Heysham Gateway 

 

Advantages 
Provides maximum 
flexibility and allows 
for the widest 
possible range of 
potential end uses. 

Provides certainty and 
guidance for planning, 
development, land 
disposal and 
infrastructure decisions. 
Provides opportunity to 
co-ordinate 
development with 
environmental 
improvements. 
Provides vehicle for 
bringing on board 
partners and 
stakeholders to jointly 
promote regeneration 
of Heysham Gateway. 
   

Could widen the 
range of uses deemed 
appropriate for the 
site and provide more 
flexibility in terms of 
utilising assets. 

Disadvantages 
Does not provide 
guidance or certainty 
for potential 
developers and the 
local community.  
No real basis for 
determining 
development 
proposals / land 
disposals. 
Makes marketing the 
area and attracting 
investment and/or 
grant funding more 
difficult. 
Difficult to co-
ordinate investment 
in infrastructure. 

Would limit the type of 
uses deemed 
appropriate for the area 
and potentially miss out 
on investment. 
Restricts options for 
land disposals. 
 

Would require more 
time and could delay 
planning and land 
decisions.  
Would create period 
of uncertainty.  
Difficult to market 
area without clear 
agreed principles. 



Risks 
Increase possibility 
of proposals for 
inappropriate uses.  
Would prejudice 
opportunity to 
promote a 
comprehensive 
redevelopment of 
the area including 
environmental 
improvements.  

May not be possible to 
get all parties to agree 
principles. Decisions 
could be delayed and 
opportunities lost if this 
is not secured quickly. 
May restrict options for 
land disposals with 
associated risks in 
achieving best 
consideration. 

Risks losing 
momentum and 
potentially urgent 
enquiries / offers. 
Could also restrict 
options for land 
disposals with 
associated risks in 
achieving best 
consideration. 

 

6.2 Use of council assets at the Heysham Gateway 

 Option B1:  
Do nothing 
further – 
continue to 
hold land for 
the time being 

Option B2:  
Dispose of land 
drawing on 
principles at 
section 4.11, 
using the 
preliminary 
ground and 
ecology survey 
work to assess 
value. 

Option B3: 
Look to develop 
necessary 
infrastructure 
and undertake 
development on 
a design and 
build basis 
subject to 
securing pre-let 
/ sales 

Option B4: 
Look to develop 
necessary 
infrastructure 
and develop 
units on a 
speculative 
basis   

Advantages 
Retains the 
site in Council 
ownership – 
could be some 
other (currently 
unforeseeable) 
use found at a 
later date.   

Brings an 
underutilised 
asset back into 
use 
 
Delivers a 
capital receipt 
with knock on 
savings for 
revenue budget 
 
Regeneration 
and job creation 
/ retention  
 
De-risking 
contributes to 
obtaining best 
consideration 
 
A long lease 
would retain 
some limited 
control over the 
site. 

Aims to bring an 
underutilised 
asset back into 
use 
Should deliver 
capital receipt / 
revenue 
savings. 
 
Regeneration 
and job creation 
/ retention. 
 
Retains a high 
level of control 
over the design 
of  the 
development 

Aims to bring an 
underutilised 
asset back into 
use 
Should deliver 
capital receipts / 
revenue 
savings.   
 
Regeneration 
and job creation 
/ retention. 
 
Retains a high 
level of control 
over the design 
of  the 
development 

Disadvantages 
Retains the 
ongoing 
management 
costs of this 
currently 
underutilised 
asset. 
 

Loss of full 
control over site. 
 

Higher level of 
initial investment 
required – may 
prevent other 
investment 
priorities. 
 
Requires further 

Much higher 
level of initial 
investment 
required – may 
prevent other 
investment 
opportunities. 
 



Would miss 
the opportunity 
to deliver a 
timely capital 
receipt with 
knock on 
savings for 
revenue 
budget 

appraisal and 
would take 
much longer to 
implement. 
 
Very uncertain 
financial 
outcome. 

Requirements 
further appraisal 
and would take 
much longer to 
implement. 
 
Very uncertain 
financial 
outcome. 

Risks 
Could be seen 
a missed 
opportunity by 
not taking 
advantage of 
the publicity 
and increased 
demand 
created by the 
completion of 
the M6 link 
road. 

Risk in finding 
the balance 
between the 
levels of up-front 
investment in 
de-risking 
(survey work) 
required to 
obtain best 
consideration for 
a particular plot. 
 
In the future 
potentially there 
could potentially 
be greater 
opportunity for 
the land – 
missed 
opportunity. 

Potentially less 
attractive to 
those who 
would wish to 
develop the site 
themselves. 
 
Higher financial 
risk exposure – 
though 
potentially lost 
opportunity to 
reap greater 
financial 
benefits. 
 
Harder to deliver 
– skills and 
capacity risk. 

Potentially less 
attractive to 
those who 
would wish to 
develop the site 
themselves 
 
Lack of demand 
for the units 
provided – with 
resulting in 
much higher 
financial risk 
exposure. 
 
Harder to deliver 
– skills and 
capacity risk. 

NOTE: The four options above have changed compared to those described in 
the Stage 1 Report (paragraph 4.7).  For example, ‘Do nothing and sell now’ 
is no longer an option on account of the de-risking work that has already 
taken place in conjunction with the County Council and has therefore been 
replaced with the ‘Do nothing further’ option.   

 

7.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 

7.1 With regards to the development principles for Heysham Gateway the Officer 
preferred option is to approve Option A2 i.e. to agree development principles 
for Heysham Gateway as the main guide for future Council decisions affecting 
the area, as this presents an informed and clear way forward, drawing on the 
views of other key stakeholders.  If approved, Cabinet is requested to 
authorise Officers to incorporate the agreed principles into a joint marketing 
prospectus for Heysham Gateway and to work with the other main 
stakeholders in promoting the area for high quality sustainable regeneration. 

 

7.2 With regards to the use of council assets the Officer preferred option is to 
approve Option B2, i.e. to dispose of land in line with the principles at section 
4.11, using the preliminary ground and ecology survey work to assess value.  
If approved, Cabinet is requested to recognise that land is surplus to its own 
operational requirements.  In terms of the other options, it is considered that 
there is little point in simply holding on to the land (option B1).  In terms of 
Options B3 and B4, as referred to in paragraph 4.9, these options are not 
considered to be worth the risk, and this has already been accepted in 
principle by the County Council. 

 



7.3 Officers consider their preferred options would provide a clear guide for future 
strategic development of the Heysham Gateway site, achieving financial 
benefits from disposal through long leasehold but still retaining some limited 
control over its current landholdings. 

 

8.0 Conclusion 

8.1 This report puts forward development principles for Heysham Gateway which, 
if agreed, provide the basis for actions in the immediate future  by the 
Council, its partners and other stakeholders seeking to capitalise in a 
sustainable way on the opportunities presented by the opening of the Bay 
Gateway.  Beyond these and building on the effects of inward investments 
both on development sites, and within the Port itself, work will continue on 
formulating an ambitious and high profile vision for Heysham Gateway over 
the next decade.   

 

 



 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
Sustainable Economic Growth is one of the Council’s four priorities as set out in the 
Corporate Plan. 
 
Heysham Gateway is identified as a Regeneration Priority in the Core Strategy and 
emerging Local Plan.  

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing) 

This report raises no significant implications. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
The Council’s Legal Services will deal with any necessary legal documentation should it be 
decided to proceed with any disposals. The legal section will also look at governance 
arrangements with the County Council to clarify roles/responsibilities/decision making in 
respect of the future development of the site. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Any capital receipt received from the sale of City Council land would be in addition to that 
already budgeted for within the financing of the current capital programme.  Under current 
financial strategy, such capital receipts are to be used to reduce the Council’s Capital 
Financing Requirement, thereby achieving ongoing revenue budget savings. 

Future reports would provide detailed proposals regarding any sale but as a guide, it is 
expected that the Council’s landholdings are currently worth around £450K.  This is before 
consideration of any fees payable in connection with any disposal. 

In terms of the wider financial benefits of developing the site, any business rates generated 
by qualifying renewable energy schemes would be wholly retained by the authority granting 
planning approval.  Any other new business rates income would be shared between the 
Government, City Council, County Council and Fire Authority.  At this point in time it is not 
possible to quantify this potential additional income. 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Human Resources/ Information Services: 

None 

Property/Open Spaces: 

These have been covered within the report, as appropriate. 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The s151 has contributed to this report, which is in part in her name (as Chief Officer for 
Resources). 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Lancaster District Core Strategy 2008 

LRPP Stage 1 Report – exempt from 
publication 

Contact Officer: David Lawson and Gary 
Watson 
Telephone:  01524 582331 / 582177 
E-mail: @lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 





Appendix B 

Summary of Site History 

 

1939   Heysham Aviation Works established 

1939 – 45  Produced wartime aviation fuel 

1948 – early 1970s Produced petroleum (Shell) and ammonium nitrate fertilisers (ICI) 

1970s and 80s Heysham 1 and 2 nuclear power stations constructed 

Early 1970s  Petroleum production ceases 

Early 1980s  Fertiliser production ceases 

Mid 1980s  City Council buys approx. 80 hectares of site 

Late 1980s  Council obtains derelict grant to remediate site to standards applicable 

at that time 

1993 Morecambe and Heysham Local Plan allocates large parts of site as 

community woodland. Aim was to improve appearance of area to 

encourage investment and to provide recreational opportunities 

2001 Heysham Port acquired by Mersey Docks and Harbour Company in 

May 2001 

Early 2000s First phase of “Middleton Wood” established with grant aid from 

NWDA and ERDF. Around 14 hectares improved and new access 

road to Heysham Industrial Estate constructed 

2004 Lancaster District Local Plan confirms Middleton Wood designation 

2005 Lancashire County Council buys Lancashire West Business Park 

(formerly ICI land east of Middleton Road) for waste transfer station. 

Subsequently construct Imperial Way. 

2009 Lancashire Wildlife Trust take on management of most of the site 

2011 City Council considers applying for Enterprise Zone status and 

submits bids for Regional Growth Funding and financial assistance 

under the “Growing Places” fund for Heysham Gateway. 

2012 Cabinet resolved to dispose of around 7 hectares of site. Option 

agreement subsequently signed with Clifton Marsh Power for gas 

fuelled power station 

2014 Lancashire Regeneration and Property Partnership begin work with 

both councils to develop strategy for the area and promote economic 

development 

Ongoing Various infrastructure projects associated with the energy market 

including cables and substations for offshore wind farms and the 

prosed tunnel head for the new national grid connections from 

Moorside in Cumbria. 




	Agenda
	3 Request to Call-in Cabinet Decision -  Heysham Gateway - Cabinet Minute 38
	cabinet minute
	Heysham Gateway Call In
	Cabinet report 061216 Heysham Gateway, 06/12/2016 Cabinet
	Appendix A - Land Ownership, 06/12/2016 Cabinet
	Appendix B - Site History, 06/12/2016 Cabinet
	Appendix C - LP Policy Map, 06/12/2016 Cabinet


